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W
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Kilcreggan Pier to Peaton

Directions to Kilcreggan for the start of the W
est Heritage Trail

By Car: 
Scenic 16 m

ile drive from
 Helensburgh to Kilcreggan Pier via the A814 

and B833 takes 30 m
inutes. Drive tim

e from
 Glasgow

 is about 1 hour 15 
m

inutes.

By Bus:
Hourly bus service from

 Helensburgh to links w
ith trains from

 Glasgow
. 

The B813 service from
 Helensburgh (Adjacent Helensburgh Central 

Station) to Coulport stops at Kilcreggan Pier. Journey tim
e 40 m

inutes. 
On Sundays the service is tw

o hourly. There are regular bus stops along 
the Shore Road route of the Heritage Trail. The B813 service also stop at 
Rosneath for the East Heritage Trail. 

By Passenger Ferry:
The SPT passenger ferry from

 Gourock to Kilcreggan Pier links w
ith train 

services from
 Glasgow. Passsage tim

e is 10 m
inutes. It runs at regular 

intervals on w
eekdays and Saturdays. There is no ferry service on Sundays.

Post code of Kilcreggan pier for Sat Nav users is G84 0JH

Overview
 of The Rosneath Peninsula W

est Heritage Trail:
The trail starts at Kilcreggan pier and proceeds North W

est for about 4.5 
m

iles to Peaton.
For w

alkers, the burgh pavem
ent on Shore Road runs for about 3 m

iles. It 
is not alw

ays w
heelchair friendly. 

M
ain car parking areas are at Kilcreggan Pier and Cove Bay. 

Barbour Road is single track m
etalled road w

ith light traffic. There are no 
official passing places or lay-bys. 

The Forestry Track runs from
 the top of Peaton Hill near the Nature 

Reserve. There is a lim
ited car parking area at the reserve. The track has 

view
s to the east and term

inates at the east end of Barbour Road w
here 

there is lim
ited parking. 

For m
ore inform

ation visit:
w

w
w

.rosneathpeninsulaw
est.com
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Th
e First Feus o

f C
o

ve &
 K

ilcreg
g

an
The first essential requirem

ent in the plan to feu the area w
as 

to provide good transport links. K
ilcreggan pier w

as opened in 
1850 and w

as described as “a substantial pier w
ith com

m
odious 

w
aiting-room

s and other conveniences”. C
ove P

ier w
as opened 

in 1852. “A
n area of ground w

as deponed to John M
cE

lroy, 
contractor, G

lasgow
, by the D

uke of A
rgyll in 

1850”. John M
cE

lroy w
as “a native of Ireland 

and a m
ason to trade though later he becam

e 
a successful railw

ay contractor. H
e w

as a m
an 

possessed of refined architectural taste, as m
ay 

be seen by som
e of the m

ost characteristic 
villas in C

ove, w
hich w

ere built from
 his 

designs”. H
e w

as also described as an iron 
founder and proprietor of houses, living, w

ith 
his w

ife, at C
raigrow

nie C
ottage. Together w

ith 
Thom

as Forgan he took feus to the south of C
ove P

ier and built 
speculatively. H

am
let H

ill and Turfhill w
ere built to house the 

necessary builders and craftsm
en and they engaged A

lexander 
Thom

son as architect of som
e of the early large houses. These 

epitom
ised contem

porary taste for setting grandiose residences in 
a rugged and picturesque landscape m

uch beloved by V
ictorians. 

H
ere the rich G

lasgow
 m

erchants could create a haven of retreat 
aw

ay from
 the dirt and grim

e of the industrial city. W
ithin a decade 

a string of villas and castles had appeared along the shore w
ith 

conform
ity to the ducal feu C

harter tightly controlled to ensure 
stylish developm

ent.

C
o

ulp
o

rt Feus
C

oulport (one m
ile north along the coast of P

eaton R
oad) w

as the 
site of an old ferry on the drovers route from

 A
rdentinny on the 

w
est side of Loch Long. 

The D
uke of A

rgyll later opened his C
oulport E

state to feuing 
building a pier in 1880. O

nly three feus w
ere taken up, one by 

architect Jam
es B

o
uch

er (1826 - 1906) of B
oucher &

 C
ousland, 

w
ho designed D

raynelg also know
n as Sw

iss C
halet. H

e also 
designed C

oulport H
ouse for his friend and neighbour John 

K
ibble, builder of K

ibble P
alace at G

lagow
’s B

otanical G
ardens). 

These residences w
ere dem

olished in the 1970s to m
ake w

ay for 
the C

oulport A
rm

am
ent D

epot. The only surviving structure is the 
stone foot of the steam

er pier.
S

om
e say that H

arry Lauder’s song “K
eep right on to the E

nd of 
the R

oad” refers to his journey along B
arbour R

oad to catch the 
C

oulport Ferry to A
rdentinny en route to his estate at G

lenbranter.
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Kilcreggan Pier. Built in 1848 to encourage 
feuing. It has the original signal discs dating 
from 1888 which regulated the order of 
steamers racing for the pier. In its heyday 
up to 39 ferries a day would call here 
and on one June Sunday in 1880 1,500 
“excursionists” alighted at the pier to enjoy 
fresh air and peaceful surroundings.

Kilcreggan village comprises 5 blocks of houses 
with shops at ground level. The first tenement 
was built in 1876. The gables on some of the 
buildings show later dates. Between two of 
them, next to the bus stop, is Temperance 
Brae, the building beside it being once the 
Temperance Hotel. The Burgh prided itself 
on being a temperance area. Glendhu (LP 
20) is one of the earliest feus. 

Donaldson Brae (LP 24) leads up to Kilcreggan 
Hotel originally called Woodbine, summer 
residence of Peter Donaldson who was an iron 
and steel merchant from Glasgow. His uncle 
built Heathfield further east on Argyll Road.

Going west along Shore Road is the Italianate 
Auchendarroch and next to it (LP 32) the 
small Alexander ‘Greek’ Thomson villa, 
Ardsloy. Continuing west, the Victorian rock 
art on the shore was re-painted in 1922 to 
celebrate Tutankhamen and named Tut-tut. 
At the east end of Silver Bay (LP 46) are four 
identical villas originally named after the royal 
houses of Windsor, Holyrood, Carleton and 
Claremont although Windsor and Carleton 
were renamed Rockliffe and Lovedale. Shortly 
before School Road and set back against the 
cliff is the Italianate Balgair (LP 52).

Beyond School Road Glentrae (LP57) is a mirror 
image of Ardsloy. Some of the next houses 
were named after hymn tunes, Winton, 
Greenhill, Kenilworth, St Vincent Park 
and Rockingham (LP64). The old United 
Presbyterian church “Lindowan” is awaiting 
development. Note its boundary wall, gate 
piers and old wooden gate.

Cove Burgh Hall, designed in 1893 by James 
Chalmers for the Burgh Commissioners. Since 
2001 it has been run by the community. 
Opposite is the War Memorial. Church Road 
leads up to Craigrownie Parish Church built 
in 1852 and enlarged by Honeyman and 
Keppie in 1889.

Between Cove Burgh Hall and North Ailey Road 
are 4 villas which include Kirklea and Glen Eden 
(see architect Alexander Thomson).

South Ailey Road. On the right are the 
gate piers for Hartfield Castle which 
became Inverclyde Holiday Home and 
was demolished in 1967. On the left is 
Craigrownie Castle in Scots Baronial Style 
attributed to Thomson. Further up on the left 
is Craig Ailey, one of the first Thomson villas 
being built in 1851. It provided the inspiration 
for many of the later villas. It was also known 
as the “Italian Villa”.  

Shortly before reaching Cove Village is 
Cragowlet (LP93) – 4 apartments designed by 
Thomson. Cove Village is a series of tenement 
type buildings built in 1876 with shops on 
the ground floor. To the back of the cottage 
at the east end of Urybank was the ‘Reading 
Room’ until 1893. North Ailey Road (LP98) 
leads up to Barbour Road for scenic walks. 
This was the original peninsula highway. 
100m. up on the right is Hamlet Hill, a group 
of workmen’s cottages. 

Moving on to Cove Bay pass Clevedon (LP104) 
once the home of the Cayzer family, owners 
of the Clan Shipping Line. The houses along 
Cove Bay are imposing Victorian villas. Cove 
Castle, designed by James Sellars in 1867, 
looks down over the bay. At LP105 are the 
remains of Cove Pier demolished in 1958. 
Seymour Lodge, (LP 106) built 1850 is an 
authentic very early Alexander Thomson. Next 
to it is Ferndene, probably Thomson, built 
for a member of the Blackie family with links 
to Hill House, Helensburgh. Note the garden 
wall and the gateway at the end of it which 
has an owl on one side and a fox on the other. 
Further on, opposite the car park, a lane leads 
to The Linn, built in 1859 by W. Motherwell for 
Mr Martin who had a boot and shoe factory in 
the Vale of Leven. It is now a botanical garden 
and nursery open to the public.

The Dhualt (Dowall) Bridge at the end of the bay 
was designed c1873 by Thomson. In the vicinity 
are more distinctive houses. For example, (LP 
111) Woodside, Armadale and Cragdarroch 
(LP 113). Above to the North sits the Thomson 
designed Knockderry Castle built c1851, with 
extensions designed by Honeyman in 1869 
and additions in 1896-7 by W. Leiper for J.S. 
Templeton, the carpet manufacturer. During 
WW2 it was used as a Free French Hospital.

The Knockderry House Hotel was built mid 19th 
C with later additions by William Leiper showing 
American Arts & Crafts influence. 

Barbour Cemetery (3.7m) following the Shore 
Road take care as there are no pavements. 
A sign on Shore Road points uphill to the 
cemetery with limited parking. 
The Cemetery contains the graves and 
impressive monuments to many notable 
families of the Victorian era who lived here 
Shortly after the cemetery turning, the centre 
one of three houses on the Shore Road was 
formerly Cove & Kilcreggan Gas Company 
built c1871.

Barbour Road, Single Track  Road
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